
Appointments 
Committee
Agenda

To: Councillor Tony Newman (Chair)

Councillors Jane Avis, Maria Gatland, Simon Hall, Tim Pollard and 
Louisa Woodley

A meeting of the Appointments Committee which you are hereby summoned to 
attend, will be held on Monday, 30 September 2019 at 2.00 pm in F11 - Town Hall, 
Katharine Street, Croydon, CR10 INX 

JACQUELINE HARRIS BAKER
Council Solicitor and Monitoring Officer
London Borough of Croydon
Bernard Weatherill House
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA

Annette Wiles 020 8726 6000 x64877
annette.wiles@croydon.gov.uk
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings
Friday, 20 September 2019

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE GREAT MAJORITY OF THE BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED 
AT THS MEETING WILL BE CONFIDENTIAL AND THEREFORE WILL BE CONDUCTED 
IN PART B OF THE AGENDA. 

N.B This meeting will be paperless. The agenda can be accessed online at 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings

Public Document Pack



AGENDA – PART A

1.  Apologies for Absence 
To receive any apologies for absence from members of the Committee

2.  Disclosure of Interest 
In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct and the statutory 
provisions of the Localism Act, Members and co-opted Members of the 
Council are reminded that it is a requirement to register disclosable 
pecuniary interests (DPIs) and gifts and hospitality to the value of which 
exceeds £50 or multiple gifts and/or instances of hospitality with a 
cumulative value of £50 or more when received from a single donor 
within a rolling twelve month period. In addition, Members and co-opted 
Members are reminded that unless their disclosable pecuniary interest 
is registered on the register of interests or is the subject of a pending 
notification to the Monitoring Officer, they are required to disclose those 
disclosable pecuniary interests at the meeting. This should be done by 
completing the Disclosure of Interest form and handing it to the 
Democratic Services representative at the start of the meeting. The 
Chair will then invite Members to make their disclosure orally at the 
commencement of Agenda item 3. Completed disclosure forms will be 
provided to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion on the Register of 
Members’ Interests.

3.  Minutes of Previous Meetings (Pages 5 - 12)
To approve the minutes of the meetings held on the following dates:
 13 May 2019;
 20 May 2019; 
 28 May 2019.

4.  Urgent Business (if any) 
To receive notice from the Chair of any business not on the Agenda 
which should, in the opinion of the Chair, by reason of special 
circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency.

5.  Appointment to Executive Director of Health, Wellbeing & Adults 
and Chief Finance Officer (Section 151) (Pages 13 - 18)
For Members to appoint to the following roles:
 Executive Director of Health, Wellbeing & Adults; and
 Chief Finance Officer (Section 151).

6.  Exclusion of the Press and Public 
The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed 
to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting:



3

“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.”

7.  Appointment to Executive Director of Health, Wellbeing & Adults 
and Chief Finance Officer (Section 151) (Part B) 
For Members to appoint to the following roles:
• Executive Director of Health, Wellbeing & Adults; and
• Chief Finance Officer (Section 151).



This page is intentionally left blank



Appointments Committee

Meeting held on Monday, 13 May 2019 at 1.00 pm in F10, Town Hall, Katharine Street, 
Croydon CR0 1NX

MINUTES

Present: Councillors Jane Avis, Simon Hall, Manju Shahul-Hameed, Louisa Woodley 
and Jason Perry

Also 
Present: Guy Van-Dichele (Executive Director of Health, Wellbeing & Adults)
Apologies: Councillor Tim Pollard

PART A

32/18  Election of the Chair

Councillor Avis proposed and Councillor Woodley seconded the motion that 
Councillor Hall chair the meeting. The Committee agreed the motion.

RESOLVED: Councillor Hall was elected as Chair of the meeting.

33/18  Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Tim Pollard.

34/18  Minutes of Previous Meetings

The minutes of the following meetings were agreed as an accurate record:
 23 May 2018;
 18 July 2018;
 12 September 2018;
 15 October 2018;
 18 October 2018;
 13 November 2018; and
 20 November 2018.

35/18  Disclosure of Interest

There were no disclosures of pecuniary interests.

36/18  Urgent Business (if any)

There were no items of urgent business.

37/18  Appointment to Director of Operations

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



RESOLVED: The Committee agreed the recommendations in the officer’s 
report.
 Agreed the salary package of the Director of Operations of £119,646 per 

annum under the Localism Act 2011; and
 Agreed candidate selection for interview and subsequently agreed an 

appointment to the post of Director of Operations from the candidate(s) 
detailed in the Part B appendices to the agenda.  Any appointment was to 
be subject to the appointment notification process as set out in section 3.4 
of part 4J of the Council’s Constitution (Staff Employment Procedure 
Rules).

38/18  Appointment to Director of Integration and Innovation

RESOLVED: The Committee agreed the recommendation in the officer’s 
report:
 Agreed candidate selection for interview and subsequently agreed an 

appointment to the post of Director of Integration and Innovation from the 
candidate(s) detailed in the Part B appendices to the agenda.  Any 
appointment was to be subject to the appointment notification process as 
set out in section 3.4 of part 4J of the Council’s Constitution (Staff 
Employment Procedure Rules).

39/18  Exclusion of the Press and Public

The following motion was put and it was agreed by the Committee to exclude 
the press and public for the remainder of the meeting.

“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, as amended.”

40/18  Appointment to Director of Operations (Part B)

RESOLVED: The Committee agreed to appoint Annette McPartland as the 
Director of Operations.

41/18  Appointment to Director of Integration and Innovation (Part B)

RESOLVED: The Committee agreed to appoint Rachel Soni as the 
Integration and Innovation.

The meeting ended at 2.00 pm

Page 6



Signed:

Date:

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Appointments Committee

Meeting held on Monday, 20 May 2019 at 8.00 pm in Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Katharine Street, Croydon CR0 1NX

MINUTES

Present: Councillor Humayun Kabir (Chair);
Councillors Tony Newman and Alison Butler

PART A

1/18  Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair

The proposal was received for Councillor Newman as Chair and Councillor 
Butler as Vice Chair. The motion was proposed by Councillor Newman and 
seconded by Councillor Butler.

RESOLVED: The Committee resolved to agree the proposal confirming 
Councillor Newman as Chair and Councillor Butler as Vice Chair for the 
2019/20 municipal year.

The meeting ended at 8.05 pm

Signed:

Date:

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appointments Committee

Meeting held on Tuesday, 28 May 2019 at 9.00 am in F11 - Town Hall, Katharine Street, 
Croydon, CR10 INX

MINUTES

Present: Councillors Hamida Ali, Simon Hall, David Wood, Simon Brew, Robert Ward 
and Alison Butler

Also 
Present:

Shifa Mustafa, Executive Director of Place and Joe Negrini, Head of the Paid 
Services

Apologies: Councillor Tony Newman

PART A

2/18  Apologies for Absence

Councillor Newman gave his apologies. Councillor Butler attended in 
substitution. 

Given Councillor Newman was unable to attend, the Members of the 
Committee agreed Councillor Butler would chair the meeting.

3/18  Disclosure of Interest

There were no disclosures of pecuniary interests.  

4/18  Urgent Business (if any)

There was no urgent business.

5/18  Appointment to Director of the Violence Reduction Network

RESOLVED: The Committee agreed the recommendations in the officer’s 
report:

I. Agreed the candidates for interview and subsequently agreed an 
appointment to the post of Director of the Violence Reduction 
Network from the candidates detailed in the Part B appendices to 
the agenda;

II. Noted the salary for the role had been assessed and agreed at 
£98,838 per annum; and

III. Any appointed was to be subject to the appointment notification 
process as set out in section 3.4 of part 4J of the Council’s 
Constitution (Staff Employment Procedure Rules).

Page 11



6/18  Exclusion of the Press and Public

The following motion was put and it was agreed by the Committee to exclude 
the press and public for the remainder of the meeting.

“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, as amended.”

 

7/18  Appointment to Director of the Violence Reduction Unit (Part B)

RESOLVED: The Committee agreed to appoint Sarah Hayward as the 
Director of the Violence Reduction Unit.

The meeting ended at 10.00 am

Signed:

Date:

Page 12



1

REPORT TO:  APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE
30 September 2019

SUBJECT: Appointment to Executive Director, Health, Wellbeing & 
Adults
and;   
Appointment of Chief Finance Officer (Section 151) 

LEAD OFFICER: Jo Negrini - Chief Executive

CABINET 
MEMBER: Cllr Simon Hall, Cabinet Member for Finance and 

Resources 
WARDS: All

CORPORATE PRIORITY/POLICY CONTEXT:  The Council’s management 
structure.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY:  The salary cost of these posts is contained within the 
2019/20 budget. 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS

The committee is recommended to:

1.1 Undertake the selection and appointment to the post of Executive Director, 
Health, Wellbeing & Adults on a fixed term appointment until 31st December 
2022 in accordance with the provisions of Part 4 J of the Council’s 
Constitution (Staff Employment Procedure Rules).

1.2 Having due regard to the Council’s current Pay Policy, agree the salary 
package of Executive Director, Health, Wellbeing & Adults at  £152,000 per 
annum as outlined in section 3.7. 

1.3 Note that the successful candidate’s offer of appointment will be subject to an 
appointment notification process in accordance with paragraph 3.4 of part 4J 
of the Council’s Constitution.

1.4 Agree the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer whose functions will 
encompass the statutory section 151 officer duties. Note that the successful 
candidate’s offer of appointment will be subject to an appointment notification 
process in accordance with paragraph 3.4 of part 4J of the Council’s 
Constitution.

1.5 Having regard to the Council’s current Pay Policy, agree the salary package 
of the Director of Finance, Investment and Risk and Section 151 Officer 
(Chief Finance Officer) at a salary of £129,646 per annum under the Localism 
Act 2011. 

1.6 Recommend the notification of both appointments to Full Council.  

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



2

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1. This report seeks the committee’s approval of the salary package for appointing on 
a fixed term contract the Executive Director Health, Wellbeing & Adults. 

 
2.2. This report seeks the Committee’s agreement to delegate to the Head of Paid 

Service authority to undertake the role of “appointer” under Part 4J of the 
Constitution in respect of the recruitment, selection and the appointment of the 
Chief Financial Officer whose functions will encompass the statutory section 151 
officer duties. 

3. DETAIL
        Appointment to Executive Director Health, Wellbeing & Adults. 

3.1 The Executive Director, People role was deleted in May 2018 and two separate roles 
created:  Executive Director for Children’s, Education and Families and Executive 
Director for Health, Wellbeing and Adults to reflect the dedicated focus required in 
these services. An interim arrangement was already in place in Adults following the 
Ofsted inspection and the long term absence of the Director of Adult Social Care & 
All Age Disability; and this was continued to provide stability whilst the recruitment to 
the Children’s role was undertaken to ensure the transformation plan for Adult 
services and health integration and efficiencies maintained leadership and drive.

3.2 The post cannot continue to be covered via the current interim arrangements as this 
is not in the best interests of the Council both financially and operationally. However 
Guy Van Dichele, the current interim, created and has been leading the service 
transformation plan, so continuity is important at this stage. 

3.3 It is therefore not proposed to advertise the post and instead to directly appoint to a 
fixed term contract.  Guy Van Dichele has been an agency placement since August 
2017 and so would have rights to apply for any internal post. 

3.4 Given the recent retirement of the Director of Adult Social Care & All Age Disability 
and that two previous Head of Service have recently been promoted to new Director 
posts, it is not considered that there is any other strong internal candidates who could 
compete for this role and so a shortlist of suitable candidates is not possible.    

3.5 At this stage of the transformation project Guy Van Dichele’s skills, knowledge and 
experience would be difficult to replicate in a timely way so as not to negatively 
impact on the transformation plan. 

3.6 The appointment committee is therefore asked to agree the appointment of Guy Van 
Dichele to the post of Executive Director Health, Wellbeing & Adults on a fixed term 
contract to 31st December 2022. 

3.7 If successful for selection the total salary package proposed is £152,000 per annum, 
which is constructed of £137,700 basic salary, £10,000 market supplement and a 
retention payment of £4,300.  

Page 14



3

Appointment to the role of Chief Finance Officer  

3.8  Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires every local authority to 
make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial affairs and 
requires one officer to be appointed as Section 151 Officer (Chief Finance Officer) 
to take responsibility for the administration of those affairs. The Section 151 officer 
is usually the local authority’s treasurer and must be a qualified accountant 
belonging to one of the recognised chartered accountancy bodies. 

3.9 The Chief Financial Officer (Section 151 officer) has a number of statutory duties, 
including the duty to report any unlawful financial activity involving the authority 
(past, present or proposed) or failure to set or keep to a balanced budget. The 
Section 151 officer also has a number of statutory powers in order to allow this role 
to be carried out, such as the right to insist that the local authority makes sufficient 
financial provision for the cost of internal audit. 

3.10 The Chief Financial Officer:- 
 

 Is a key member of the Leadership Team, helping it to develop and implement 
financial strategy and to resource and deliver the organisation’s strategic 
objectives sustainably and in the public interest; 

 Must be actively involved in, and able to bring influence to bear on, all material 
business decisions to ensure immediate and longer term implications, 
opportunities and risks are fully considered, and alignment with the 
organisation’s financial strategy; and 

 Must lead the promotion and delivery by the whole organisation of good 
financial management so that public money is safeguarded at all times and 
used appropriately, economically, efficiently and effectively. 

To deliver these responsibilities the CFO must lead and direct a finance function 
that is resourced to be fit for purpose; and must be professionally qualified and 
suitably experienced.

3.11  Lisa Taylor is the current Director of Finance, Investment and Risk, and in addition 
to her role has been undertaking the Section 151 Officer statutory responsibilities 
on an interim basis since February 2019, and this arrangement has worked 
successfully for the Council.  She meets the qualification and experience 
requirement to be able to carry out the CFO duties and powers. 

3.12 The Appointments Committee is therefore asked to appoint Lisa Taylor to the role of 
the Chief Finance Officer and Section 151 Officer as an addition to her role as 
Director of Finance, Investment and Risk.  Any such selection is subject to the 
notification requirements within the provisions of paragraph 3.4 of Part 4J of the 
Council’s Constitution. 

3.13 Recommend the notification of both appointment decisions be presented to Full 
Council.   

Page 15



4

Localism Act 2011 and Pay Policy

3.14 Following the decision of the Annual Council meeting on 03 June 2014, the 
Appointments Committee has delegated responsibility for approving appointments 
beyond the threshold specified in statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State under section 40 of the Localism Act 2011. The statutory guidance is that 
elected Members should be given an opportunity to vote before: salary packages 
upon appointment at or above a specified threshold are offered; and severance 
packages at or beyond a specified threshold are approved for staff leaving the 
Council’s employment.  For both these purposes, the specified threshold is 
currently £100,000 as set by Government.   

3.15 As set out in the Council’s pay policy, directors are appointed on fixed pay points, 
which are determined locally and subject to local review every two years. The fixed 
pay point for the Executive Director Health, Wellbeing & Adults as  set out in the 
2019/20 Pay policy is for a fixed pay point of £137,700 . The pay assessment for this 
role has been benchmarked against comparable roles in London and salary data 
from the London Council’s pay survey 2019.

3.16 However provision for an additional market supplement of up to £10k per annum 
may be required to attract the calibre of candidate for this role within the context of 
the borough’s opportunities and challenges.  In addition, to ensure we secure the 
services of the candidate an annual retention payment of £4,300 is also 
recommended.   

3.17 The salary for the Director of Finance, Investment and Risk with the addition of the 
statutory duties of the Chief Finance Officer have been assessed for an increase to 
the Director spot salary from £109,140 to a new salary of £129,646.   

3.18 The Council’s Staff Employment Procedure Rules at Part 4.J of the Constitution 
provide for a notification process to ensure that the Leader and any other Cabinet 
Members have no objections to the offer of appointment occurs before an offer of 
appointment is made to him/her and these requirements will be complied with should 
members approve the above recommendations.

4     FINANCIAL AND RISK CONSIDERATIONS

4.1 Revenue and Capital consequences of report recommendations (excluding on 
costs or any future pay review) 

Current Year Future Years
2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Executive Director * 76.0 152.0 152.0 114.0**
Chief Finance Officer * 10.3 20.6 20.6 20.6

*    the assumption is that both posts are appointment from 1/10/19
**   the assumption is that the post holder is appointed until 31/12/22

Page 16



5

4.2 The effect of the decision
These are established posts and the budget identified in section 4.1 above has been 
aligned to the anticipated start date of the successful candidates. The salary costs 
arising from this decision can be met from the existing 2019/20 budget. 

4.3 Risks

There is a risk of being unable to retain the right calibre of person to these roles if the 
salary is not comparable to the market. Failure to appoint suitable candidates to these 
roles will result in a lack of strategic leadership for the organisation, and non- 
compliance as council’s are required to have a dedicated S151 Officer.

4.4 Options

The alternative option of not filling the role; and for not making provision within the 
parameters of the Council’s agreed Pay Policy Statement is not considered sustainable 
or viable option as explained in paragraph 4.3 above.

4.5 Future savings/efficiencies

The appointment of the Executive Director of Adults, Health and Wellbeing to a fixed 
term contract will result in a saving of approximately £20k per annum compared to 
the current arrangements via an agency contract.
Approved by: Jacqueline Harris-Baker, Executive Director, Resources  

5 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The Head of Litigation and Corporate Law  comments on behalf of the Director of Law 
and Governance that the Council may appoint such staff as it considers necessary for 
the proper discharge of its functions on such reasonable terms and conditions, 
including remuneration, as the Council thinks fit. 

5.2  Where the appointment of a Chief Officer as defined by the Council’s Staff Procedure 
Rules (Part 4J of the Constitution) is concerned, the Constitution provides that such 
appointment shall normally be carried out by the Appointments Committee unless 
Appointments Committee specifically delegate such appointment to the Head of Paid 
Service. Provision is also made under paragraph 3.4 of Part 4J for a notification 
process to ensure that the Leader and any other Cabinet Members have no objections 
to the offer of appointment being made, before an offer of appointment is made to the 
successful candidate. For this purpose the statutory definition of Chief Officer includes 
both the proposed appointment of the Executive Director of Health, Wellbeing & Adults 
and the Chief Financial Officer

5.3 Paragraph 3.4 of Part 4J provides that an offer of an appointment as the Head of Paid 
Service, a Statutory Chief Officer, a Non-Statutory Chief Officer, or a Deputy Chief 
Officer must not be made by the appointor until - (a) the appointor has notified the 
proper officer of the name of the person to whom the appointor wishes to make the 
offer and any other particulars which the appointor considers are relevant to the 
appointment; (b) the proper officer has notified the Leader of - (i) the name of the 
person to whom the appointor wishes to make the offer; (ii) any other particulars 
relevant to the appointment which the appointor has notified to the proper officer; and 

Page 17



6

(iii) the period within which any objection to the making of the offer is to be made by 
the Leader on behalf of the Cabinet to the proper officer; and (c) either (i) the Leader 
has, within the period specified in the notice under sub-paragraph (b)(iii), notified the 
appointor that neither he/she nor any other Member of the Cabinet has any objection 
to the making of the offer; (ii) the proper officer has notified the appointor that no 
objection was received by him within that period from the Leader; or (iii) the appointor 
is satisfied that any objection received from the Leader within that period is not material 
or is not well founded. 

5.3.1 The Appointments Committee has delegated responsibility for approving 
appointments in accordance with the threshold specified in statutory guidance issued 
by the Secretary of State under section 40 of the Localism Act 2011. The statutory 
guidance provides that elected Members should be given an opportunity to vote 
before a salary package upon appointment above a specified threshold is offered; or 
a severance package beyond a specified threshold is approved for staff leaving the 
Council’s employment. For both these purposes, the specified threshold is currently 
£100,000 per annum as set by Government and the definition applied to “salary 
package” for this purpose includes salary, any bonuses, fees or allowances routinely 
payable to the appointee and any benefits in kind to which the officer is entitled as a 
result of their employment. 

5.3.2 Finally, the Statutory Guidance from the Secretary of State sets out that all decisions 
on pay and reward for chief officers must comply with the current pay policy 
statement.  

Approved by: Sandra Herbert Head of Litigation and Corporate Law on behalf of the 
Director of Law and Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer.

6 CUSTOMER, EQUALITIES, HUMAN RIGHTS, FREEDOM OF INFORMATION, 
DATA PROTECTION CRIME AND DISORDER  IMPACT

6.1 There are no direct considerations arising from this report.

CONTACT OFFICER:  Sue Moorman, Director of Human Resources

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: none 

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	Minutes , 20/05/2019 Appointments Committee
	Minutes , 28/05/2019 Appointments Committee

	5 Appointment to Executive Director of Health, Wellbeing & Adults and Chief Finance Officer (Section 151)

